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CONSENT CALENDAR
March 26, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Contract No. 32400015 Amendment:  California Consulting for on-call 
grant writing services

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment to Contract 
No. 32400015 with California Consulting, Inc. for on-call grant writing services to 
increase the contract amount by $303,000 for a new not-to-exceed amount of $350,000 
and extend the contract term to June 30, 2026.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
This on-call contract has spent almost 95% of the currently authorized not-to-exceed 
amount of $47,000.  A contract amendment in the amount of $303,000 for this on-call 
contract will come from the following funding sources: Reimagining Public Safety 
General Fund allocation ($153,000), Fire Department Measure FF allocation 
($100,000), and a Parks Tax allocation ($50,000).  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
On November 15, 2021, the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) enacted the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act by congress, which set up a wide variety of 
competitive grant programs for public agencies.  These grant programs will fund 
billions in infrastructure projects and public safety programs across the U.S. over the 
next several years.  Examples of upcoming grant programs for the Reimagining Public 
Safety Initiative will include, but are not limited to Crisis Intervention programs, public 
safety equipment and technology, Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion programs, Gender 
and Domestic violence prevention programs, and Law Enforcement Mental Health 
and Wellness Act (LEMHWA) programs; examples of upcoming grant programs for 
the Berkeley Fire Department will include, but are not limited to fire prevention and 
safety FEMA grants, community wildfire prevention and mitigation projects, and urban 
and community forestry management grants; and examples of upcoming Parks 
infrastructure projects will include, but are not limited to hazardous soil remediation 
projects, parks improvement projects, and sea-level rise adaptation and habitat 
projects.  Several City departments have a need for grant writing services to compete 
for these funding programs.  A contract amendment with California Consulting, Inc. 
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will provide the City with high quality grant writing services to compete for these 
upcoming grant programs.

BACKGROUND
On July 27, 2023, the City executed contract no. 32400015 with California Consulting, 
Inc. for on-call grant writing services in an amount not to exceed $47,000 for the period 
of July 20, 2023 through July 20, 2024.  For over twenty-seven years, California 
Consulting has provided grant writing services to cities, school districts, and other public 
entities throughout California.  In the past five years, California Consulting has provided 
grant-writing assistance to the City of Berkeley for thirteen (13) competitive grants.  To-
date, the City has received four grant awards totaling $12.9 million, two were not 
awarded, and we will learn about another seven (7) grant award decisions in the next 
three to six months.  A contract amendment with California Consulting will provide the 
City with the necessary capacity to submit competitive grant proposals as Notice of 
Funding Opportunities (NOFO’s) for grant programs are announced over the next two 
fiscal years.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no negative impacts to environmental sustainability and climate change 
associated with the contents of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
In the past five years, California Consulting has provided grant-writing assistance to the 
City of Berkeley for thirteen (13) competitive grants.  To-date, the City has received four 
grant awards totaling $12.9 million, two were not awarded, and we will learn about 
seven (7) grant award decisions in the next three to six months.  California Consulting 
has a team of highly-qualified grant writers that will provide the City with the necessary 
capacity to submit competitive grant proposals as Notice of Funding Opportunities 
(NOFO’s) for grant programs are announced over the next two fiscal years.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront, (510) 981-6700
David Sprague, Fire Chief, (510) 981-6903
Jen Louis, Police Chief, (510) 981-5900
Carianna Arredondo, Assistant to the City Manager, City Manager’s Office, 510-981-
7655

Attachments: 
1: Resolution
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RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 32400015 WITH CALIFORNIA CONSULTING, Inc. 
FOR ON-CALL GRANT WRITING SERVICES

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2021, the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) enacted the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act by congress, which set up a wide variety of 
competitive grant programs for public agencies.  These grant programs will fund billions 
in infrastructure projects and public safety programs across the U.S. over the next 
several years; and 

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2023, the City executed contract no. 32400015 with California 
Consulting, Inc. for on-call grant writing services in an amount not to exceed $47,000 for 
the period of July 20, 2023 through July 20, 2024; and

WHEREAS, for over twenty-seven years, California Consulting has provided grant 
writing services to cities, school districts, and other public entities throughout California; 
and

WHEREAS, in the past five years, California Consulting has provided grant-writing 
assistance to the City of Berkeley for thirteen (13) competitive capital improvement 
grants.  To-date, the City has received four grant awards totaling $12.9 million, two were 
not awarded, and we will learn about seven (7) grant award decisions in the next three 
to six months.  

WHEREAS, funding for this contract amendment in the amount of $303,000 will come 
from the following funding sources: Reimagining Public Safety General Fund allocation 
($153,000), Fire Department Measure FF allocation ($100,000), and a Parks Tax 
allocation ($50,000).  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
City Manager is authorized to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32400015 with 
California Consulting, Inc. for grant writing services increasing the amount by $303,000 
for a revised contract amount not-to-exceed $350,000, and extending the contract to 
June 30, 2026.  A record signature copy of said contract will be on file in the Office of 
the City Clerk.
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